
         
 
ADDENDUM #1  
RFP NUMBER:  2015027-HR-P 
Voluntary Worksite Benefits RFP 
 
DATE:  February 11, 2015 
 
TO:  All Potential Offerors 
 
City of Harrisonburg’s Voluntary Worksite Benefits RFP, is modified as follows: 
 
1.  Current census information will be released in a future addendum.  Because this information contains 
confidential information, any Offeror that would like access to this information must complete and submit the 
attached “Confidentiality & Non-Disclosure Agreement” (Attachment K).  Submissions of this document may 
be emailed to Ms. Pat Hilliard, Procurement Manager, at Purchasing@harrisonburgva.gov or by fax to her at 
540-432-7778.  Upon receipt of a completed Agreement, the documents will be emailed directly back to the 
requestor. 

2.  Question:  How does the City currently enroll and administer their Voluntary and Worksite benefits?  Is an 
outside company or enrollment firm used? 

Answer:  Enrollment is handled by the vendor during the City’s Open Enrollment period and at the time 
of hiring of new employees.  The employee is expected to contact the vendor directly to make changes 
to any plans in which they have enrolled. 

3.  Question:  I would like to request a copy of current Aflac invoices. 

Answer:  The City does not receive monthly invoices from AFLAC.  The billing is handled 
electronically.  We have attached a report indicating the number of participants (see page 6 of this 
addendum) and associated costs on a monthly basis for the last three months (November and December 
of 2014 and January 2015) (see page 7 of this addendum). 

4.  Question;  For the Hospital Confinement Grid:  this was missing from the document. 

Answer:  This is now combined with the Critical Illness Plan at our current provider.  We do not have 
current information to provide as a standalone grid for this policy.   

5.  Question:  How many new hires do you have each year, approximately? 
 

Answer:  The City has hired an average of 76 new employees per year, over the last three (3) years. 
 
6.  Question:  With regards to the Accident Grid, all carriers typically have 3-5 different levels of coverage, 
each one with a higher premium, but also higher payouts.  Sometimes the employer chooses which level to 
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offer, and some carriers allow each employee to choose the level.  How should we quote this?  Comparing rates 
on different levels of coverage is very hard to do. 
 

Answer:  The City has provided information in the RFP related to rates and types of coverage offered.  
Please use this information as your reference point and prepare an appropriate response.  Offerors are 
encouraged to provide information on any other products the company believes would be advantageous 
for the employees to consider. 

 
7.  Question:  With regards to the Critical Illness & Cancer Grids, most carriers have two separate products for 
each of these areas, and some have a combined Critical Illness w/Cancer coverage.  Is it ok to quote the more 
relevant “combined” coverage?  This typically saves employees about 30% for more coverage. 
 

Answer:  The City has provided information in the RFP related to rates and types of coverage offered.  
Please use this information as your reference point and prepare an appropriate response.  Offerors are 
encouraged to provide information on any other products the company believes would be advantageous 
for the employees to consider. 

 
8.  Question:  With regards to the Hospital Confinement Grid, is an HSA or an HRA in place, or is one planned 
to be offered in the near future?  Can you send the current SBCs on your medical coverage? 
 

Answer:  City of Harrisonburg Health Insurance is provided by Anthem Blue Cross Blue Shield – 
www.anthem.com – 800-451-1527. 
 
Health Insurance Premiums – City currently pays 70% of the cost for health care.  Below is the 
information. 
 
• Deductible  

- single coverage: $500 
- family coverage: $1000 

• Co-payments  
- $25 for outpatient primary care physician visits  
- $50 Co-payment for outpatient specialty care provider  

• Routine Wellness Services, 100% Allowable Charges: 
- Well Baby visits    
- Mammography screenings  
- Check-up visits     
- Prostate exams  
- Gynecological exams 
- Immunizations  

• 20% of Allowable Charges (AC) after deductible for diagnostic services (in-network physicians) 
• 20% of Allowable Charges (AC) after deductible for outpatient facility services and emergency 

room visits  
• In-network maximum calendar year deductible 

- single coverage :  $3,000 
- family coverage:  $6,000  

(no family member will pay more than $3,000 toward the limit) 
• Prescription drug card--three tier levels of coverage: 

30 Day Supply     90 Day Supply 
- First tier:    $10   $20   
-  Second tier:  $40   $80 
-  Third tier:  $75   $150 
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The City does not currently offer employees either an HSA or an HRA.  I do not anticipate either of 
these types of plans to be offered within the next fiscal year (July 2015 to June 2016). 
 
The City has provided Short Term Disability (STD) insurance for employees who were hired on or after 
January 1, 2014 (employer paid).  Employees hired on or after this date may be enrolled in the Hybrid 
Retirement Plan through the Virginia Retirement System (VRS) (non-public safety employees) or 
provide a similar program through the City of Harrisonburg (public safety employees in Plan 1 or Plan 2 
of VRS).  Hybrid Plan employees are eligible to participate in the STD once they have been employed 
with the City for a minimum of twelve months (non-work related injury or illness).  
 
A description of the VRS STD may be found on the VRS website: 
http://www.varetire.org/Pdf/Publications/vldp-manual-ch2-short-term-disability.pdf#search=%22Short 
Term Disability%22  
 
The City has provided a comparable plan for non-public safety employees hired after 1/1/15 (39 
employees) through the Standard Company and has provided a comparable plan for public safety 
employees (18 employees) through Sentara-RMH Occupational Health. 
 
City of Harrisonburg legacy employees have had access to the Short Term Disability plan offered 
through AFLAC and may have chosen to participate on an employee-paid basis.   
 
STD Plan Design for Hybrid Employees (those employees hired after January 1, 2014 and all VRS 
Hybrid members): 
• 12 mo waiting period for non-work related injuries/illnesses 
• Benefits start on the 8th day of injuries/illnesses 
• Eligible for up to 125 workdays 

 
9.  Question:  What current LTD coverage does the City have?  (STD Grid) 
 

Answer:  The City offers Long Term Disability insurance only to those employees hired since January 1, 
2014 as a part of the VRS Hybrid Plan.  Coverage begins after 125 workdays and the employer-paid 
Short Term Disability is exhausted. 
 
Legacy employees are eligible to apply for VRS Disability Retirement if they are no longer able to 
perform the functions of their job. 

 
10.  Question:  What Elimination Period should we quote for the STD Grid?  Some carriers allow the employee 
to choose, others make the employer select only one. 
 

Answer:  The Short Term Disability plan will be a voluntary employee paid insurance and the employee 
should make the determination regarding the elimination period.  Should the employee choose to 
participate, the benefit will be completely separate from any leave coverage offered through the City. 

 
11.  Question:  What Benefit Period should we choose for the STD Grid? 
 

Answer:  See response to Question #13. 
 
12.  Question:  Should we quote Off-Job or On/Off-Job?  (STD Grid) 
 

Answer:  On and off the job. 
 

City of Harrisonburg, VA - Voluntary Worksite Benefits RFP (2015027-HR-P) Addendum #1 Page 3 of 7



13.  Question:  Should the coverage “coordinate” with other sources of income, or are you looking for STD that 
pays regardless of other sources of income?  (STD Grid) 
 

Answer:  The STD coverage does not have to coordinate with any other sources of income that may be 
provided or coordinated by the City. 

 
14.  Question:  Do you want plans that include mental and nervous (i.e. anxiety) conditions?  Many carriers will 
restrict any stress/anxiety related conditions in the fine print.  Others allow it. [mental related disabilities are 
growing due to stress, which is why this should be an important part of your analysis]  (STD Grid) 
 

Answer:  Those who choose to prepare a proposal in response to this RFP are free to recommend 
coverage appropriate for City of Harrisonburg employees. 

 
15.  Question:  Do you want rates that are Issue or Attained Age rated?  (STD Grid) 
 

Answer:  Issue rated. 
 
16.  Question:  Are you looking for "Unit" plans or 60% plans: some carriers only allow the employee to enroll 
in coverage that is 60% of their gross pay, and others allow the employee to determine how much benefit that 
want to receive.  (STD Grid) 
 

Answer:  Those who choose to prepare a proposal in response to this RFP are free to recommend 
coverage and/or plans appropriate for City of Harrisonburg employees. 

 
17.  Question:  Please provide a copy of a sample contract. 
 

Answer:  See Attachment J of the RFP document (page 29). 
 

18.  Question:  Please provide the current participation amounts for each plan. 
 

Answer:  See response to Question #3. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All other requirements, terms and conditions of the RFP remain unchanged.  
 
Addendum page must be signed and returned with your proposal to acknowledge receipt of this addendum. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Authorized Signature 
 
 
 
By:  Pat Hilliard, CPPB 
        Procurement Manager  
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